District 4: Dayton's Bluff

District 4, known as Dayton's BWfosis located aTonb the
Mississippi‘River,bTuffs extending east from downtown St. Paul. It
is separated from do@ntown‘by’the’wide,,marshy Phalen Creek/Tnout
Brook valley whioh was filled in the late nineteenth century for
railroad track beds, and is now the site of interstates 94 and 35E.
District 4 is bounded by the Burlington Northern railroad tracks and
M1nnehaha Avenue on the north the Bur11ngton Northern r@11roao
tracks and Interstate 94 on the west, tne V1531sswop1 River and the
bluffs of Indian Mounds Park on the south, and Highway 61, Bjrm1ngham
Street, and Johnson Parkway on the east. | .

P]ann1no District 4 is unique because it contanns a series of
burial mounds identified by some scho1ars as hav1nq been constructed
by m1gratory bands of Hopewe111an Indtans thousands of years ago.
Kaposia, a large Dakota Indian village, also existed on Dayton's
Bluff from the late seventeenth century until the mid-nineteenth
century, and the Dakota used a bluff area as a sacred burial ground.
khite settlers' reports from the 1830's describe seeing burial
scaffolds bearing Indian corpses on the crest of the bluffs.

The first white sett]ers arrwved 1n the area in the 1830's,
beginning with U1111am Evans, a. dtscharged so1o1er from Fort Snelling
who staked the f1rst c1a1m on the B]uff Evans was soon fo]]owed
by other p1oneers who esta@]1shed farms on the rlch hi]ly Tand
The deve]opment of the Bluff as an attractive s1te for res1dent1a,
sett]ement was antwcwpated by real estate specu]ator Lyman Dayton
who purchased near1y f1ve thousand acres for. 1nvestment _purposes
in 1849. vae years 1ater, ‘when the City of St Paul was. 1ncorporated
the offwcwa? cwty T1m1ts 1nc1uded the oort1on of Dayton s B]uff
extend1no east to Cable and Arcade Streets The rest of Dwstrwct &
was annexed by ‘the city 1n ]838 1877, and 1885 Substant1a]
sett]ementof'Dayton s Bluff occurred durtnq the 1850's and 1860's
when wealthy residents of the city who sought the isolation and
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picturesque qualities of the area built large mansions on the bluffs,
par%icu?ariy near today's Indian Mounds Park. The Sumﬁit Hill
area to the west soon surpassed the BIuff as a fashionable upper
class neighborhood, and now most of the CiVi1yWarkera mansions on
Dayton's Bluff have been demolished. The much-altered houses at
334 Mounds Boulevard and 908 Mound Street (the Smith-Davidson-Scheffer
House) remaih as examples of this early period of development.

- As the population of St. Paul grew rapidly during the 1860's
“through the 1880's and streetcar and railroad lines were established,
the western third of District 4e¥pe¥ﬁencédsubstantia1 settlement.
A large community of predominantly German-born, skilled working and
middle class people built houses and commercia1 buildings in the
northwest portion of the Bluff, roughly west of Mendota Street.
This area contains one of the area's greatest concentrations of
hineteenth century buildings, ch1uding good examples of the
Italianate ,Eastlake, and Queen Anne styTes, a1though many
have been altered and maintained poorly. The Adolph Muench House

7. 374 N. Maria Avenue, Schoch Building, 1385, designed
by Augustus F. Gauger. (Photo by Gary Phelps)
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at 653 E. F1ft% Street, now a National Register and St. Paul Heritage
Preservation Comm1ss1on site, and the two houses adjacent to the

east, the Sch&@h;8u11d1ng at 374 N. Maria Avenue (no. 7) and the Schornstein

Grocery and Saloon at 707 E. Wilson Avenue (no. 8) are among the most
architecturaT]y and historica11y»significant buildings. The
predominanily vacant Tand _immed%ately west of this neighborhood
was once the sité of the of the "Connemara Patch", a collection of
modest workwng class houses and businesses constructed by Irish
immigrants aTong the edge of Pha1en Creek, beneath the Third Street
Bridge. This neighborhood was completely obliterated by urban
rénewal in the 1950's.

8. 707‘E 111son Avenue, SChOVnSL€1ﬂ s Grocery and Sa?oon,
1884, ﬂes1”ﬁaﬁ “J PuJuovud F;kCauﬂ“*.'\1nov, ay ,a:r1r1n
MUAan - L , '

The residential neighborhoods around Indian Mounds Park and
the area immediately north and south of E. Seventh Street were also
settled during the 1870's and 1880's. Today the area still contains
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a number of intriguing, substantial Victorian houses, many with
spectacular views of the Mississippi River valley, incTuding'the
houses scattered along Burns Avenue, the Giesen House at 82/ Mound
Street, the Farwell/Jameson House, circa 20 N. Bates Avenue, and

the houses along Mounds Bou1evard. These houses are surrounded by
more modest and less intact late nineteenth and turn of the century
houses. The neighborhoods north and south of E. Seventh Street
developed as a result of the commercial activity along E. Seventh
Street, which became a major streetcar line in the 1880's, The streets
bordering E. Seventh Street contain a few basically fntact ItaTianaté”
houses, and a large collection of Queen Anne, "patternbook", and
vernacular Victorian houses ranging in size from the modest woodframe
~Peter John House at 649 E. North Street on the edge of Swede Hollow

to the ornate brick Henry and Hilda Defiel House at 732 E. Margaret
Street. E. Seventh Street also contains an important collection

of Victorian commercial buildings, although most have been altered
substantially. o

9. 1216 E. 7th Street, Charles and Lena Messerli House,
1886, cesign attributed to Louis Singer. This is one
of the finest houses standing on E. 7th Street and an
excellent example of -the Italianate style.
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~ The femaininq residentia](portiohs of District 4 were settled
during the twentieth century. The central third of the district,
bounded roughly by Earl Street and Johnson Parkway, contains Victorian
houses and commerc1e1 bu11d1ngs Tocated along streetcar lines and
other major streets, and many Colonial Revival houses dating from
cwrea 1900 to 1920. The eastern portion of District 4, east of
Johnson Parkway, was settled after World War I. It contains a 1arge
number of bungalows, Perwod Revival, and suburban tract houses, few
of which are arch1eectura11y significant.

Industries whigh*attracted residents to Dayton's Bluff and

helped form the ece%omic'base for the community were located
originally in the northern and western portioﬁs of the district
along railroad Tines. The Historic Sites Survey identified few
nineteenth and'turdéof the century industrial buildings still standing.
An important exception is Hamm's Brewery, now Olympia Brewery, located
at 707 E. Minnehaha Avenue, which was established on the site of the
short-Tived Pittsbu}gh Brewery in 1864. By the 1880's, when some
of the present breW%ry buildings were constructed, Hamm's was one
of the largest breweries in theéNorthwest. Although most of the

Hamm's buinings are still standing and in use, many were altered
drastically in the m1d twent1eth century Immedwate]y south of the
brewery, a1ong the upper edge of the b1uff forming ’Swede Hollow",
is a large vacant Jot wh1ch marks the s1te of the Hamm s Manswon,
which was destroved by f1re 1n 1954, The 1arge and somewhat altered
houses across the street on Greenbr1er Street were buwlt by severai
of Theodore Hamm S ch11dren and pr1nc1pa1 emp]oyees, and are thus
hwstorwcal]y T1nked to the- brewery Another 1mportant 1ndustr1a1
site 1dent1f1ed by the Survey is the M1nnesota W?ﬂ]ng and
anufactur1ng (3M) comp]ex at Bush Avenue and Arcade Street The
former 3M corporate headquarters bu11d1nas now used by the company
for other purposes, stands at 900 E. Bush Avenue. J
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In addition to its wealth of late nineteenth and turn of the
century houses, some of which are architecturally intact, Dayton's
Bluff contains several churches and other buildings which are
historically and architecturally important. Significant churches
include St. Peter's Protestant Episcopal Church at 754-758 E. Fourth
Street; Evangelical Lutheran Bethlehem Church designed by the architect
of the St. Paul Cathedral, Emmanuel L. Masqueray, at 661 N. Forest
Street and Holman United Methodist Church at 243 N. Bates Avenue.
The oldest public school in the city standingion its original site
s the Mounds Park SChool built in 1891 at 998 E. Pacific Street.
The Bluff also contains a few examples of the Prairie style, the
most important being the Mounds Park Pavilion at Indian Mounds Park (no. 10)
which was built circa 1916 and designed by City Architect Charles
Hausler with Percy Dwight Bentley. Other significant buildings
include the Soo Line Freight Depot at 483 E. Seventh Street and the
mildly Streamlined Moderne style Wolkoff Building at 1975 E. Hudson
Road. ‘

10. Ca. 1060 E. Mounds Boulevard, Mounds Park Pavilion, ca.
1916, designed by Charles Hausler and Percy Dwight Bent-
Tey. (Photo by Gary Phelps) it
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Following is a list indicating a site in District 4 which has
aTready been designated a National Register and a St. Paul Heritage
Preservation Commission site; a list of sites which the Historic
Sites Survey staff believes are eligible for designation and a I1st

of addwtwona? sites of major swgn7f1cance Approximate 10cat1ons
of the sites are showr on the accompany1ng map-.

8
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Sites Already Désignated

1. 653 E. 5th Street, Adolph Muench House

Sites Eligible for Designation

2.

10.
11.
12.
13.

352 N. Bates Avenue, Max and Amiiia Toltz House and Carriage
House

373

732

374
964
Ca.
827

707

N.
E.
N.
E.

Maple Street, Peter and Louisa John House
Margaret Street, Henry and Hilda Defiel !louse
Maria Avenue, Schoch Building

Minnehaha Avenue, Eilers House .

1060 E. Mounds Boulevard, Mounds Park Pavilion

N.

E.

Mound Street, Peter and Mary Giesen House

Wilson Avenue (also 223 N. Bates Avenue), Schornstein

Grocery and Saloon

757 E. 6th Street, Arthur and Elsa Koenig House

770 E. 6th Street, Michael and Rose Walter House

447-449 E. 7th Street, George E. Hess Building

1216 E. 7th Street, Messerli House

Additional Sites of Major Significance

14,
15.
16.
17.
18.
19.

Ca.

20 N. Bates Avenue, Farwell/Jameson House

243 N, Bates Avenue, Holman United Methodist Church

358 N. Bates Avenue, Charles L. Tracy !'ouse

376 N. Bates Avenue, John Pfister House

881 E. Beech Street, Northwestern Telephone Tower Exchange

1157 E. Burns Avenue, House
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20.
21.
22.
23.
24,
25.
26.
27.
28.
29.
30-
31.
32.
33,
34,
35,
36.
37,
38.
39,
40,
41,
42,

43.

900

915
410
981
661
614
627

668

672

680

1075 E.

410

715
889
170
358
677

707

N.

N.

©338 N.
N.

E.

N,

E.

. Bush Avenue, 3M Corporate Headquarters

. Conway Avenue, House

. Eichenwald Street, Charles W. Chasé House
. Fuclid Street, House

. Forest Street, Evangel%cai Lutheran Bethlehem Church
Fountain Place, Fredrick and Clara Bergmeier House -
. Greenbrier Stfeet, August Heidel House

. Greenbrier Street, William and Marie Hamm House

Greenbrie% Street, Otto and Maria Muller House

Greenbrie? Street, Peter and Emma Classen House
Hudson Road; Wolkoff Building

Maple Street, Jacob W. Petter Hodse

Maple Street, House

Margaret Street, Jaco% F. and Alice Franzel House

. Margaret Street, Zahn House
. Maria Avenue, Albert and Wilhemina Koehler House

. Maria Avenue, Louis Korfhage House

Mendota Street, House

Minnehaha Avenue, Hamm's Brewery

908 Mound S%reet, Smith-Davidson-Scheffer House

51 E. Mounds Boulevard, George W. Bohn House

334 E. Mounds 80u1e9ard, Houﬁe

1155 E. Mounds Boulevard, House

649 E. North Street, Peter Ross House



a4,
45,
46.
47.
48,
49,
50.
51.
52,
53.
54,

998 E. Pacific Street, Mound Park School

1150 E. Pacific Street, King House

963 E. Wakefield Avenue, William and Harriet B. Wakefield House
699 E. Wilson Avenue, Phillip Johns Housé o J

973 E. Wilson Avenue, House

1044kE° Wilson Avenue, Henry L. Gray House

800 E. 3rd Sfreef, Commercial Building

704 E. 4th Street, House and Carriage House

754-758 E. 4th Street, St. Peter's Protéstan@;EpisccpaT Church
483 E. 7th Street, Soo Line Freight Depot |

1179 E. 7th Street, Commercial Building
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